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1. Some notes on the passato prossimo Italian, Section 36 : il passato prossimo

 
1. Why is the passato prossimo used? 
 

The present perfect tense in Italian is called il passato prossimo. This tense is different to the present tense. 

 

Il presente is used when talking about what people are doing now. 

What about actions that have already happened? To talk about past actions, we have to use a past verb tense. In Italian there 
are several past tenses. We use the passato prossimo when talking about an action that has been completed in the recent past.  

Il presente is a single-word verb. Il passato prossimo is made up of two words, as it is in English.  

Il presente Il passato prossimo 

Mangio una pizza. 
I’m eating a pizza. 

 
Il bambino dorme. 

The child is sleeping. 
 

Ambra legge un libro.  
Ambra is reading a book. 

Ieri ho mangiato una pizza. 
Yesterday I ate a pizza. 

 
Il bambino ha dormito dieci ore. 

The child has slept ten hours. 
 

Ambra ha letto il libro. 
Ambra has read the book. 

 
2. How is the passato prossimo formed? 
 

In Italian, the present perfect is made up of an auxiliary (helping) verb and a past participle. The auxiliary is usually the present 
tense of the verb to have, just as in English. We need the auxiliary to show us who has done the action. The past participle tells 
what the action is. 
 

Ho mangiato, grazie. 

 

auxiliary verb + past participle 

I have             eaten 

I have eaten, thanks. 

Ora che vivono in centro, hanno venduto la macchina. 

 

auxiliary verb + past participle 

they have               sold   

Now that they live in the city, they have sold their car. 

Finalmente ha finito il libro. 

 

auxiliary verb + past participle 

she has           finished 

She has finished the book at last. 
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To form a regular past participle, start with the infinitive and change the ending. 
 

infinitive change ending to: past participle 

mangiare 
eat 

-ato mangiato 
eaten 

vendere 
sell 

-uto venduto 
sold 

finire 
finish 

-ito finito 
finished 

 
When putting these present tense sentences into the passato prossimo, note the changes required: 
  

Gioco a tennis. gioco  giocare  giocato io  ho        Ieri ho giocato a tennis. 

Tu parli con la zia? parli  parlare  parlato tu  hai      Ieri hai parlato con la zia? 

Lui vende la casa. vende  vendere  venduto lui  ha       Ieri ha venduto la casa. 

Lei capisce tutte le parole. capisce  capire  capito lei  ha       Non ha capito tutte le parole. 

Dormiamo fino alle dieci.  dormiamo  dormire  dormito noi  abbiamo  Ieri abbiamo dormito fino alle dieci. 

Voi guardate quel film? guardate  guardare  guardato voi  avete  Ieri avete guardato quel film? 

Loro puliscono la casa. puliscono  pulire  pulito loro  hanno   Ieri hanno pulito la casa. 

 
3. Irregular past participles 
 

You’ve learned the regular way of forming past participles:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
There are several common -ere and –ire verbs which don’t follow this pattern. You will have to memorise these irregular past 
participles individually. Here are twenty common ones. 
 
Even irregulars have are some patterns: 
 

Infinitive Irregular past 
participle 

Infinitive Irregular past 
participle 

aprire   (open) aperto  chiedere   (ask) chiesto 

morire   (die) morto  vedere   (see) visto 

chiudere   (close) chiuso  essere   (be) stato 

decidere   (decide) deciso  nascere   (be born) nato 

perdere   (lose) perso  dire   (say) detto 

prendere   (take) preso  fare   (do) fatto 

ridere   (laugh) riso  leggere   (read) letto 

mettere   (put) messo  scrivere   (write) scritto 

succedere   (happen) successo  bere    (drink) bevuto 

   venire   (come) venuto 

 

infinitive change ending to: past participle 

mangiare 
eat 

-ato mangiato 
eaten 

vendere 
sell 

-uto venduto 
sold 

finire 
finish 

-ito finito 
finished 
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4. Avere or essere as the auxiliary verb 
 
Most verbs take avere as their auxiliary when used in passato prossimo. 
 

parlare  Ieri ho parlato con Luciano. 

scrivere Paola ha scritto una lettera. 

capire Non abbiamo capito niente di quel film. 

 
There is a group of verbs that need essere as the auxiliary when they are used in the passato prossimo: 
 

verb for example:

andare      (go) sono andato 

venire       (come) è venuto 

arrivare     (arrive) sono arrivato 

partire       (leave) è partito 

entrare      (enter) sono entrato 

uscire       (go out) è uscito 

tornare      (return) sono tornato 

cadere      (fall) sono caduto 

essere       (be) è stato 

stare          (be) sono stato 

rimanere    (stay) sono rimasto 

sparire       (disappear) è sparito 

diventare   (become) è diventato 

nascere     (be born) sono nato 

morire        (die) è morto 

 
Why do some verbs need avere and other verbs such as these require essere? It depends on the action that the verb 
expresses.  
 
We can apply a test to work out whether a verb takes essere or avere as the auxiliary: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The verb probably requires avere.The verb probably requires essere. 

Is the verb an action that you can do to someone or something?  

NO 

Is it a verb that describes motion of the whole body? For example:  
andare, venire, arrivare, partire, entrare, 
uscire,  tornare, sparire, cadere. 

Is it a verb that describes a state of being? For example:  
essere, stare, rimanere, 
nascere,  diventare, morire. 

YES 

NO YES 

YES NO 
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Look at these examples: 
 
 Ambra ha letto il libro.  Ieri ho parlato con Luciano. 
 The verb directly acts on an object, or is actively directed at someone. 
 
 Marco è partito ieri.   Sono andato al mare. 

These actions involve only the subject; they do not impact on an object.  
 
 
5. Agreement with the subject 
 

In verbs that require essere as the auxiliary, the past participle has to agree with the subject; in other words, the ending changes 
to reflect masculine or feminine, singular or plural. 
 
Let’s take andare as an example. Look at how it works in the passato prossimo: 
 

 Io sono andata al mercato. 
 Tu sei andato in piscina? 
 Erica è andata in campagna. 
 Noi siamo andati al cinema. 
 Tu e Valeria siete andati in discoteca? 
 Le mie sorelle sono andate al concerto. 

 
When putting these present tense sentences into the passato prossimo, note the changes required: 
 

 Vado al mare.   
vado  andare  andato  
io (f)  sono           
Ieri sono andata al mare. 

 

 La festa è molto noiosa.  
è  essere  stato  
essa  è            
La festa è stata molto noiosa. 

 
 La mamma e la zia escono per fare la spesa. 

escono  uscire  uscito   
loro (f)  sono        
Loro sono uscite per fare la spesa. 

 

 I miei fratelli rimangono a casa.    
rimangono  rimanere  rimasto 
loro (m)  sono      
I miei fratelli sono rimasti a casa. 

 
 

6. Reflexive verbs in the passato prossimo 
 

Here are some examples of reflexive verbs: 
 
 

 
Reflexive verbs in the past require essere as the auxiliary: 
 

 Mi sono alzato alle sette. 
 
This means that the past participle has to agree with the subject: 
 

Present reflexive Passato prossimo reflexive

Paolo, ti alzi presto? Paolo, ti sei alzato presto? 

Valeria si pettina male. Valeria si è pettinata male. 

Ci divertiamo in vacanza. Ci siamo divertiti in vacanza. 

Pia e Maria, perché vi vestite di nero? Perché vi siete vestite di nero? 

Il bambino si rompe la gamba. Si è rotto la gamba. 

 
 

Infinitive Example in present tense

alzarsi   (to get up) Mi alzo alle sette. 

pettinarsi    (to comb one’s hair) Si pettina sempre male. 

divertirsi   (to enjoy oneself) In vacanza ci divertiamo. 

vestirsi  (to get dressed) Vi vestite di nero. 

rompersi la gamba  (to break one’s leg) Se cade si rompe la gamba. 


